
 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Date: Wednesday, 25 May 2022 
Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: Council Chamber, County Hall, Dorchester, DT1 1XJ 
 

Members (Quorum )  

Jon Andrews, Kate Wheller and Susan Cocking 
 
Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall, Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ  

 

For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services  
Meeting Contact  01305 224202 elaine.tibble@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting, apart from any items listed in 
the exempt part of this agenda. 

 
For easy access to all the council’s committee agendas and minutes download the free 
public app called Modern.Gov for use on any iPad, Android, and Windows tablet.  Once 

downloaded select Dorset Council. 
 

 
 

Agenda 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND STATEMENT FOR THE 

PROCEDURE OF THE MEETING 

 

3 - 6 

 To elect a Chairman for the meeting and the Chairman to present and 

explain the procedure for the meeting.  
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES 

 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 

 To disclose any pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable interests 
as set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their disclosure 

councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of the 
interest and any action they propose to take as part of their declaration. 
If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer 

in advance of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
4.   URGENT ITEMS 

 
 

 To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 

of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall be 
recorded in the minutes. 
 

 

5.   NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION FOR THE CLUB 
WIMBORNE, WIMBORNE 

 

7 - 82 

 An application has been made for a new premises licence for The 
Club, Wimborne. The application has been out to public consultation 

and has attracted relevant representations. A Licensing Sub-
Committee must consider the application and representations at a 

public hearing. 
 

 

6.   EXEMPT BUSINESS 

 

 

 To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following item 

in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the 
meaning of paragraph x of schedule 12 A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended).  

The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the 

item of business is considered. 

 

 

 

 



 
 
THE LICENSING ACT 2003 (HEARINGS) REGULATIONS 2005 

 

Rights of a Party 

 
1. A party has the right to attend the hearing and may be represented by any 

person.  

2. A party is entitled to give further information where the authority has asked 
for clarification. 

3. A party can question another party, and/or address the authority, with 
consent of the authority.   

 

Failure to Attend 
 

4. If the authority is informed a party does not wish to attend, the hearing may 
proceed in their absence.  

5. If a party has not indicated their attendance and fails to attend the hearing 

may be adjourned if considered in the public interest, or hold the hearing 
ensuring the party’s representation is considered.  

6. Where the authority adjourns the hearing it shall notify the parties of the 
date, time and place.  

 

Procedural Information 
 

7. At the start of the hearing, the authority shall explain the procedure which 
it proposes to follow and shall consider any request for permission for 
another person to appear at the hearing. 

8. A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority and 
cross-examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considers 

that it is required.  
9. The authority will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 

which to speak.  

10. The authority may require any person behaving disruptively to leave, and 
may refuse that person to return, but such a person may, before the end of 

the hearing, submit in writing information they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave. 

 
FOOTNOTE: 
 

In relation to all other matters governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 any party or their representative may contact the Licensing 
Services at Dorset Council and they will be provided with a full copy of the 

regulations on request. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 

 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 

 
1. At the start of the meeting the Chairman will introduce: 

 the members of the sub-committee 

 the council officers present 

 the parties and their representatives 

 
2. The Chairman will then deal with any appropriate agenda items. 

 
3. The Licensing Officer will be asked to outline the details of the application,   

including details of any withdrawn representations.  

 
4. The applicant or their representative is then invited to present their case. 

 
5. Committee members will be invited to ask questions. 
 

  6. Where appropriate the Responsible Bodies e.g. representatives of Police, 
Fire Services, Environmental Services or Trading Standards will be invited 

to address the sub-committee on any relevant representations they may 
have. 

 

7. The Chairman may then allow an opportunity for questions. 
 

8. The Chairman will ask any person who has made representations, who 
have already expressed a wish to do so, to address the sub-committee.  
The sub-committee will have read all the papers before them, including 

any letters of representation.  Members of the public are asked to keep 
their comments concise and to the point. 

 
9. All parties will be given the opportunity to “sum up” their case. 
 

10. The Chairman will ask the Legal Advisor if all relevant points have been 
addressed before advising all parties present that the sub-committee will 

withdraw from the meeting to consider its decision in private.  The sub-
committee will be accompanied by the Democratic Services Officer and 
the Legal Advisor can be called upon to offer legal guidance. 

 
11. The Chairman will: 

 

 advise when the sub-committee’s decision will be confirmed in 
writing.  

 Inform those present of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court. 
 

Page 4



 
NOTE 

 

The Chairman may vary this procedure, as circumstances require but will have 

regard to the rules of natural justice and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005. 
 

The meeting will take place in public.  However, the public can be excluded 
from all or part of the meeting where the sub-committee considers that the 

public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the meeting or that 
part of the meeting, taking place in public. 
 

Under no circumstances must the parties or their witnesses offer the sub-
committee information in the absence of the other parties. 

 
The Chairman and the Sub-Committee have discretion whether to allow new 
information or documents to be submitted and read at the meeting. 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee 

25 May 2022 

New Premises Licence Application for The 
Club Wimborne, Wimborne 
 

For Decision 

Portfolio Holder:  Cllr L Miller, Customer and Community Services

  
Local Councillor(s): Cllrs Bartlett and Morgan 

Executive Director: J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place  

     
Report Author: Kathryn Miller 

Title: Senior Licensing Officer  
Tel: 01305 252214 

Email:  Kathryn.miller@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Report Status:  Public 

 
Brief Summary: An application has been made for a new premises licence for 

The Club, Wimborne. The application has been out to public consultation and 

has attracted relevant representations. A Licensing Sub-Committee must 

consider the application and representations at a public hearing. 

Recommendation: The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light 

of written and oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers 
appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of; 
          a) The prevention of crime and disorder 

          b) The prevention of public nuisance 
          c) Public safety 

          d) The protection of children from harm 

 

 
Reason for Recommendation: The Sub-Committee must consider the oral 

representations and information given at the hearing before reaching a decision.      
 

 
  

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
The steps that the Sub Committee may take are: 

 
a) To grant the licence subject to such conditions as the authority considers 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and the 
mandatory conditions 

b) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 

to which the application relates 
c) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the designated premises 

supervisor 
d) To reject the application 

  

 
1. Background 

1.1 Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 sets out the duties of the Licensing 

Authority, it sets out that a Council’s licensing functions must be carried 

out with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives of: 

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

(b) public safety; 

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 

(d) the protection of children from harm.  

1.2 All applications and decisions are made with due regard to the Licensing 

Act 2003 (the Act), the Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 (the Guidance) and the Dorset Council Statement of 

Licensing Policy (the Policy). 

2. Details of the Application  

2.1 Sophia Elizabeth Harrington has applied for a new premises licence at The 

Club Wimborne, 23a Eastbrook Row, Crown Mead, Wimborne, BH21 

1HN. 

2.2 The description of the premises within the application is: 

“First floor entertainment venue, which has been operated by the 

same family for many years.” 

2.3 The full application and the plans for the premises, as received, are 

attached at Appendix 1.  The site location can be viewed at Appendix 2 

taken from the Council’s Dorset Explorer page, which shows the proximity 

of nearby residential properties. 

Page 8

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s19584/Appendix%20A%20Dorset%20Council%20Statement%20of%20Licensing%20Policy%202021%20DRAFT%20v12.pdf
https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s19584/Appendix%20A%20Dorset%20Council%20Statement%20of%20Licensing%20Policy%202021%20DRAFT%20v12.pdf


2.4 The application is to permit:   

Recorded and live music (indoors): 

Everyday  2300 to 0300 hours  

Late night refreshment (indoors): 

Everyday  2300 to 0300 hours. 

Sale of alcohol (on the premises): 

Everyday  1200 noon to 0300 hours 

 

2.5 The premises have previously held a licence which was known as The 

Vibe Lounge from November 2005 and according to our records it lapsed 

in July 2019.  The hours were:  

Sale of alcohol (on the premises): 

Everyday 1000-0200 hours 

Regulated entertainment (indoors): 

Everyday 1000-0200 hours.   

 

3. Representations from Responsible Authorities 

3.1. Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003 contains the list of Responsible 

Authorities who must be consulted on each premises application. Dorset 

Police, Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Service, Public Health Dorset, the 

Immigration Authority, Dorset Council Trading Standards, Dorset Council 

Planning Department, Dorset Council Children’s Services and Dorset 

Council Health and Safety Team have all been consulted.   

3.2. Dorset Police have requested additional conditions to be added to the 

licence, which the applicant has agreed and can be found at Appendix 3. 

3.3. Environmental Health have, in addition to extra conditions, also 

requested a cordoned off designated smoking area outside the front of 

the premises, the applicant has agreed to this and provided an updated 

floor plan.  The agreed conditions and the updated floor plan are 

attached at Appendix 4. 

Page 9



4. Representations from Other Persons 

4.1. There were 13 representations received from members of the public and 

these are included at Appendix 5. The matters concerning anti-social 

behaviour must be taken into consideration under the procedures as set 

out in the Licensing Act 2003.  

4.2. Four letters in support of the application were received and can found at 

Appendix 6. 

4.3. The Guidance sets out at 8.13 the role of “other persons”: - 

“As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role 

in a number of licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes 

any individual, body or business entitled to make representations to 

licensing authorities in relation to applications for the grant, variation, 

minor variation or review of premises licences and club premises 

certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises. 

In addition, these persons may themselves seek a review of a 

premises licence. Any representations made by these persons must 

be ‘relevant’, in that the representation relates to one or more of the 

licensing objectives. It must also not be considered by the licensing 

authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of applications for 

reviews, there is an additional requirement that the grounds for the 

review should not be considered by the licensing authority to be 

repetitious. Chapter 9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) 

provides more detail on the definition of relevant, frivolous and 

vexatious representations. 

4.4. The guidance states at paragraph 9.4 what a “relevant” representation 

is;- 

“A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the 

grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing 

objectives. For example, a representation from a local 

businessperson about the commercial damage caused by 

competition from new licensed premises would not be relevant. On 

the other hand, a representation by a businessperson that nuisance 

caused by new premises would deter customers from entering the 

local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that 

nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, 

representations should relate to the impact of licensable activities 

carried on from premises on the objectives.” 

Page 10



 
5. Considerations 

5.1 Paragraphs 9.42 to 9.44 of the Section 182 Guidance sets how the 

Authority should decide what actions are appropriate. 

 

“9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions 

are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their 

areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a case 

by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or 

objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 

other persons, and representations made by the applicant or 

premises user as the case may be. 

 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, 

justified as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. 

 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what 

action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While this does 

not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser 

step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the 

potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises 

licence holder (such as the financial burden due to restrictions on 

licensable activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that 

the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its 

determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the 

objectives and nothing outside those parameters. As with the 

consideration of licence variations, the licensing authority should 

consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to 

mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives and the track record of the business. Further advice on 

determining what is appropriate when imposing conditions on a 

licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing 

authority is expected to come to its determination based on an 

assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for 

or against making the determination.” 

Page 11



6. Financial Implications 

Any decision of the Sub-Committee could lead to an appeal by any of the 

parties involved that could incur costs. 

7. Climate Implications 

None 

8. Well-being and Health Implications  

None 

9. Other Implications 

Public Health and Community Safety  

 

10. Risk Assessment 

10.1 HAVING CONSIDERED: the risks associated with this decision; the level 

of risk has been identified as: 

Current Risk: Medium 

Residual Risk: Medium 

 

11. Equalities Impact Assessment 

 

None  

12. Appendices 

 Appendix 1 – Application and plan 

 Appendix 2 – Site location 

 Appendix 3 – Comments from Police 

 Appendix 4 – Comments from Environmental Health and updated floor plan  

 Appendix 5 – Representations from interested parties against the application 

 Appendix 6 – Representations from interested parties supporting the application 

 

13. Background Papers 

Licensing Act    
Section 182 Guidance    

Dorset Council Licensing Policy  

 

Page 12

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/part/3/crossheading/variation-of-licences
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/35024/391427/Dorset+Council+Statement+of+Licensing+Policy+Final++01-02-2021.pdf/799cf2e1-4af1-b9e8-4858-1f1b102554d5


 Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

 
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are 
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. 
 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 
 
 
I/We Sophia Elizabeth Harrington 
         (Insert name(s) of applicant)  
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the 
relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
  

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
 
The Club Wimborne  
23A Eastbrook Row 
Crown Mead 

Post town Wimborne Postcode BH21 1HN 

 

Telephone number at premises (if any)    

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £17750 

 
Part 2 - Applicant details 
 
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as        Please tick as appropriate 
 

a) an individual or individuals *  please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual *   

 i as a limited company/limited liability 
partnership 

 please complete section (B) 

 ii as a partnership (other than limited 
liability) 

 please complete section (B) 

 iii as an unincorporated association or  please complete section (B) 

 iv other (for example a statutory corporation)  please complete section (B) 

c) a recognised club  please complete section (B) 

d) a charity  please complete section (B) 

Page 13



e) the proprietor of an educational establishment  please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 
 
 
 
ga) 
 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the 
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an 
independent hospital in Wales 
 
a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of 
Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 
(within the meaning of that Part) in an 
independent hospital in England 
 

 
 
 
 

 

please complete section (B) 
 
 
 
please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 
England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 
* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one 
box below):     

 

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 
premises for licensable activities; or 

 

I am making the application pursuant to a   

 statutory function or  

 a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative  
 
(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 
example, Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
Harrington 

First names 
Sophia Elizabeth 

Date of birth                             I am 18 years old or over   Please tick yes 

Nationality British   

Current residential 
address if different from 
premises address 

Post town Postcode 

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 
(optional) 

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work 
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see 
note 15 for information) 
 
           
 

 

Page 14



SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 
example, Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
      

First names 
      

Date of birth                                 I am 18 years old or over  Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work 
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see 
note 15 for information) 
 
           
 

Current residential 
address if different from 
premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 
(optional) 

      

 
 
(B) OTHER APPLICANTS 
 
Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where appropriate please 
give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a 
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned. 
 

Name 
  

Address 
 

Registered number (where applicable) 
 

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.) 
 

Page 15



Telephone number (if any)  
      

E-mail address (optional) 
 

 
Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start?     ASAP 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 
                

 

 
 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 
  
First floor entertainment venue, which has been operated by the same family for many years. 

 
If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any 
one time, please state the number expected to attend. 

      
 

 
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 
 
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 
 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)         
Please tick all that 
apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)  

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  
(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 

 

Page 16



 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)   

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)  

 
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 17



A 
 

Plays  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of a play take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 
guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the performance of plays at different times to those listed in 
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 18



B 
 

Films  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)  
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please 
read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 19



C 
 

Indoor sporting events  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 
      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please 
read guidance note 5) 
                  

Wed             

            

Thur             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 20



D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 
entertainments  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 
take place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 
entertainment (please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 21



E 
 

Live music  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of live music take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 23:00       Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

      03:00 

Tue 23:00       

      03:00 

Wed 23:00       State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 
(please read guidance note 5) 
            03:00 

Thur 23:00       

      03:00 

Fri 23:00       Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the performance of live music at different times to those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 6) 
      

      03:00 

Sat 23:00       

      03:00 

Sun 23:00       

      03:00 

 

Page 22



F 
 

Recorded music  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 23:00       Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

      03:00 

Tue 23:00       

      03:00 

Wed 23:00       State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 
(please read guidance note 5) 
            03:00 

Thur 23:00       

      03:00 

Fri 23:00       Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the playing of recorded music at different times to those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 6) 
      

      03:00 

Sat 23:00       

      03:00 

Sun 23:00       

      03:00 

 

Page 23



G 
 

Performances of 
dance 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the performance of dance take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 
(please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in 
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 24



H 
 

Anything of a similar 
description to that 
falling within (e), (f) or 
(g) 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be 
providing 
      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please read 
guidance note 3)  

Indoors  

Mon             Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Wed             

            

Thur             State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 
guidance note 5) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat 
            

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling 
within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sun 
            

            

 

Page 25



 I 
 

Late night 
refreshment 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the provision of late night refreshment 
take place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 23:00       Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

      03:00 

Tue 23:00       

      03:00 

Wed 23:00       State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 
refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 
            03:00 

Thur 23:00       

      03:00 

Fri 23:00       Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 6) 
      

      03:00 

Sat 23:00       

      03:00 

Sun 23:00       

      03:00 

 

Page 26



J 
 

Supply of alcohol 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 
consumption – please tick (please read 
guidance note 8)   
 

On the 
premises 

 

Off the 
premises 

 

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 12:00       State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please 
read guidance note 5) 
            03:00 

Tue 12:00       

      03:00 

Wed 12:00       

      03:00 

Thur 12:00       Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

      03:00 

Fri 12:00       

      03:00 

Sat 12:00       

      03:00 

Sun 12:00       

      03:00 

 
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as 
designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the 
checklist at the end of the form): 
 

Name   Sophia Elizabeth Harrington 

Date of birth 

Address  

Postcode 

Personal licence number (if known) 
PA2071 

Issuing licensing authority (if known) 
Dorset Council 

 
 
 

Page 27



K 
 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 
children (please read guidance note 9). 
 
 N/A 

 

L 
 

Hours premises are 
open to the public 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 
 
 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 10:00       

      03:30 

Tue 10:00       

      03:30 

Wed 10:00       

      03:30 Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be 
open to the public at different times from those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

Thur 10:00       

      03:30 

Fri 10:00       

      03:30 

Sat 10:00       

      03:30 

Sun 10:00       

      03:30 

 

 

Page 28



M  
 
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 
 
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10) 

There shall be no supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises 
 
A Personal Licence Holder is to be present at the premises at all times during 
licensing hours. 
 
An attendant shall be on duty in the cloakroom during the whole time that it is in 
use. 
 
Documented delegation of authorisations to sell alcohol shall be maintained at the 
premises and shall be available on request by an authorised officer of the Licensing 
Authority or the Police. 

 
b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

A CCTV system shall be installed at the premises. The CCTV system shall be 
maintained in working condition and record the premises when licensable activity 
is taking place. Recordings to be retained for a minimum of 28 days and be made 
available to the Police or officers of the Council upon request and be of evidential 
quality.  
 
The equipment MUST have a suitable export method i.e. CD/DVD/USB facility so 
that the Police and officers of the Council can make an evidential copy of the data 
they require. This data should be in the native file format to ensure that no image 
quality is lost when making the copy. If this format is nonstandard (i.e. 
manufacturers proprietary), then the licence holder shall within 14 days of being 
requested supply the replay software to ensure that the video on the CD can be 
replayed by the Police and officers of the Council on a standard computer. Copies 
MUST be made available to the police and officers of the Council upon request.  
 
Staff working at the premises will be trained in the use of the equipment and a log 
will be kept verifying this.  
 
Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders 
of ALL people entering the premises, i.e. capable of identification.  
 
There shall be signs displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in 
operation.  
 
Should the CCTV become non-functional this will be reported immediately to the 
Licensing Authority 
 
At the commencement of work, security personnel should ensure that they are 
recorded on the CCTV system and that a clear head and shoulders image showing 
their face clear of any hat, glasses or other obstruction is recorded. 
 

Page 29



Where there is reasonable suspicion that drugs, defined as Class A, B or C 
controlled substances under the Misuse of Drugs Act (1971), or weapons are being 
carried, the premises licence holder shall ensure that the outer clothing, pockets and 
bags of those entering the premises are searched by door security personnel. In any 
event where controlled substances or weapons are found, the premises licence 
holder shall ensure that the designated premises supervisor or nominated person 
shall immediately inform the Police. 
 
The premises licence holder shall ensure that a clearly visible notice shall be placed 
on the premises advising those attending, that the Police shall be informed if 
anyone is found in possession of controlled substances or weapons. 
 
Security arrangements shall include having a member of staff regularly check toilet 
areas, the date and times of all checks are to be recorded in a bound book kept for 
that purpose and shall be produced upon request to an authorised officer of the 
Licensing Authority or a constable. Signage shall also be placed in the toilet areas 
advising patrons that checks are conducted regularly. 
 
SIA registered Door Supervisors shall be employed on each occasion the premises 
is operating as a nightclub on the following basis :- 
 
a) 1 supervisor to be employed from the time the premises opens (or 19:00hrs, 
whichever is later) until 30 minutes after closing time. There shall be a minimum of 
one door supervisor to every 120 or part 120 customers attending the venue plus 
one additional Door Supervisor at the main entrance. 
b) The premises licence holder shall also comply with any request reasonably made 
in writing by the police to provide additional door supervisors if any event is taking 
place in Wimborne which gives the Police cause to be concerned about matters of 
crime and disorder generally, including for example during the currency of the 
Wimborne Folk Festival. 
c) Whenever one or two door staff are required to be employed, both shall be 
situated on the front entrance of the premises. 
d) The third door supervisor shall work as a "roamer" although nothing herein shall 
prevent door staff from attending any part of the premises or outside in the near 
vicinity if an incident occurs, requiring their urgent attendance. 
e) All door staff shall be provided with radios linked to each other and shall wear 
high visibility jackets over their outer clothing. 
f) A written log shall be maintained regarding SIA door registered staff and the log 
shall contain the following details in respect of each person working at the 
premises: - 
I. the date of the entry 
II. the time the individual was booked on duty and off duty 
III. the name of the individual 
IV. his or her SIA badge number and the expiry date of the badge. 
g) The log shall be kept and maintained at the premises and made available for 
inspection upon request from Police, Licensing and other authorised officers. 
 
 There shall be no entry or re-entry after 02:15 hours and a notice at all exits (save 
for those used only for emergency purposes) shall be displayed to that effect. Door 

Page 30



staff shall be instructed to advise any customer leaving or attempting to go outside 
the premises after 02:15 hours that he or she will be refused re-admission. 
 
Super-strength lagers, beers and/or ciders, i.e. those with an ABV of 6.5% or 
higher, shall not be sold at the premises. 
 
A premises daily register shall be kept at the premises.  This register shall be 
maintained and kept for a rolling period of 12 months.  The register shall record all 
incidents which may have occurred which are relevant to the supply of alcohol and 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. Such incidents shall include, but not be 
limited to, complaints made to the premises alleging nuisance or anti-social 
behaviour by persons attending or leaving the premises and all refusals to sell 
alcohol. The register shall be readily available for inspection by an authorised 
person upon reasonable request 
 

 
 
 
c) Public safety 

The premises licence holder shall determine the occupant capacity of the premises 
on the basis of documented risk assessment(s). 
 
All gangways, passages, staircases and exit ways must at all times be kept entirely 
free from chairs or any other obstructions and from any article or substance which 
may cause a person to slip, trip or fall 
 
Predetermined arrangements shall be made for alerting staff in the event of any 
emergency. These arrangements shall be of such a nature as to not alarm the public. 
 
A currently qualified first aider must be employed on the premises at all times that 
the premises are open to the public. The venue will also provide first aid facilities 
commensurate with the type of event and customers expected 
 
All beverages (including alcoholic and non-alcoholic drinks) shall only be dispensed 
in polycarbonate, plastic, non-glass containers, or toughened or safety glass to the 
appropriate safety standard (in that they shall not produce sharp shards when 
broken). All glass bottles are to be retained behind the bar for safe disposal. 

 
 
d) The prevention of public nuisance 

The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a Taxi firm to provide 
transport for customers, with contact numbers made readily available to customers 
who will be encouraged to use such services. 
 
Queuing outside the premises shall be restricted to a designated area.  
 
No drinks shall be taken outside the premises at any time. 
 
The premises shall be fitted with a noise limiting device and all amplified music 
(be it live or recorded or both) shall be routed through the device. 

Page 31



 
The noise limiting device shall be set at a level or levels and shall ensure that 
whenever regulated entertainment in the form of live or recorded music is 
provided, no nuisance is caused to occupiers of any nearby noise sensitive 
property. 
 
Details of the settings of the noise limiting device shall be made available to 
authorised officers (as defined by the Licensing Act) on request and shall be re-set 
if such officer reasonably request the same. 
 
Whenever regulated entertainment is provided all external doors and windows shall 
be kept shut, save for access, egress and in the event of an emergency. 
 
Any food or drink provided by way of late-night refreshment shall be provided for 
consumption on the premises only and patrons shall not be permitted to leave the 
premises with such food or drink. 
 
No rubbish (including bottles) will be taken out of the premises or placed into any 
outside area between 23.00hrs and 07.00hrs. 
 
Notices shall be displayed on or near the exits requesting that customers leave 
quietly and in a responsible manner. 
 
A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly 
available at all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made 
available to residents and businesses in the vicinity. 

 
 
 
 
e) The protection of children from harm 

The Premises Licence Holder shall adopt a “Challenge 25” policy where all 
customers who appear to be under the age of 25 and attempt to purchase alcohol or 
other age-restricted products are asked for proof of their age. The premises licence 
holder shall prominently display notices advising customers of the “Challenge 25” 
policy. The following proofs of age are the only ones to be accepted: 

• proof of age card bearing the PASS hologram logo; 
• passport; or 
• UK photo driving licence. 
• A Military ID Card 

 
Notices advertising that the premises operates a "Challenge 25" scheme shall be 
displayed in a clear and prominent position at the premises entrance. 
 
The Licensee will keep a written record of all staff authorised to sell alcohol, the 
record to contain the full name, home address, date of birth and national insurance 
number of each person so authorised. The staff record to be kept on the licensed 
premises and made available for inspection by the Licensing Officer, Trading 
Standards or the Police. 
 

Page 32



The Licensee will ensure that each member of staff authorised to sell alcohol has 
received adequate training on the law with regard to age restricted products and 
that this has been properly documented and training records kept. The training 
record to be kept on the licensed premises and made available for inspection by the 
Licensing Officer, Trading Standards or the Police.  
 
The Licensee will ensure that each member of staff authorised to sell alcohol is 
fully aware of his /her responsibilities in relation to verifying a customer's age and 
is able to effectively question purchasers and check evidence of proof of age.  
The Licensee will ensure that each member of staff authorised to sell alcohol is 
sufficiently capable and confident to confront and challenge under - 18s attempting 
to purchase alcohol.  
 
The licence holder shall keep a register of refused sales of all age- restricted 
products (Refusals Book) which shall be made available for inspection by 
authorised officers on request 
 
The refusals book will contain details of time and date, description of the 
attempting purchaser, description of the age restricted products they attempted to 
purchase, reason why the sale was refused and the name/signature of the sales 
person refusing the sale.  
 
The Refusals book will be examined on a regular basis by the Licensee and date 
and time of each examination to be endorsed in the book.  
 
The Refusals Book will be kept on the licensed premises and made available for 
inspection by the Licensing Officer, Trading Standards or the Police. 

Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 
 

 
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. 

 
 

 I have enclosed the plan of the premises.  

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and 
others where applicable. 

 

 I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be 
designated premises supervisor, if applicable. 

 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application.  

 
 
 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will 
be rejected. 
[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not 
a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I 
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United 
Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work 
checking service (please read note 15). 

 
 
 
 

 

     
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   
 

Page 33



IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A 
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO 
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT 
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE 
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE 
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE 
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE 
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.  
 
 
Part 4 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 11) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance 
note 12).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.  
 
 

Declaration 

 [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I 
am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the 
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a 
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on 
of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I 
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance 
note 15).       
 

 The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK 
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing 
work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or 
her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to 
work check using the Home Office online right to work checking 
service which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15) 
    

Signature 

Date 01/04/2022 

Capacity Duly Authorised Agent 

 
For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other 
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please 
state in what capacity. 
 

Signature  
Date  

Capacity       

 

Page 34



Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated 
with this application (please read guidance note 14) 
Innpacked Ltd 
10 Whittle Road 
Ferndown Industrial Estate 

Post town Wimborne Postcode BH21 7RU 

Telephone number (if any) 01202 890030      

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 
PREMISESLICENCE@INNPACKED.COM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notes for Guidance 
 

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout 
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where 
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for 
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will 
be and its proximity to the premises. 

2. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  
 Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any 

day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
 Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in 

community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the 
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening 
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such 
screening abides by age classification ratings. 

 Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

 Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, 
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000. 
Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which 
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a 
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event. 

 Live music: no licence permission is required for: 

Page 35



o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, on any premises. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those 
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar 
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell 
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is 
responsible for the premises. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a 
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the 
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the 
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

 Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 

premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a 
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, 
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser 
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for 
the premises. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at 
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or 
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and 
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant 
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school 
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

 Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance 
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable. 

 Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, with no limit on audience size for:    

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority 
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local 
authority;  

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health 
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the 
health care provider;  

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the 
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and 

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling 
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it 
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, 
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for 
more than 28 consecutive days.                                                              

3. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors 
may include a tent). 

Page 36



4. For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant 
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified 
or unamplified. 

5. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during 
the summer months. 

6. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a 
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

7. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the 
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity. 

8. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the 
premises’.  If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the 
premises, please tick ‘off the premises’.  If you wish people to be able to do both, please 
tick ‘both’. 

9. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to 
the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless 
of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not 
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of 
gaming machines. 

10. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together. 
11. The application form must be signed. 
12. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 
13. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agent 

must sign the application form. 
14. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 
15. Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications 

from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships: 
 

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is 
resident in the UK who:  

 does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or  
 is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the 

carrying on of a licensable activity.  
 

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 
will become invalid if the holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK. 

 
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not 
subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this application 
copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be 
certified), or 2) by providing their ‘share code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry 
out a check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below). 
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 

 
 An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport 

as the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies 
having the right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the 
passport to copy]. 

 
 An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a 

person named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European 
Economic Area country or Switzerland. 

 

Page 37



 A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the 
Home Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland. 

 
 A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a 

national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland. 
 
 A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by 

the Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay 
indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

 
 A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration 

control, is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or 
has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

 
 A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder 

with an endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely 
in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in 
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National 
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous 
employer. 

 
 A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination 

with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number 
and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

 
 A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or 

Ireland when produced in combination with an official document giving the 
person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a 
Government agency or a previous employer. 

 
 A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in 

combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National 
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous 
employer. 

 
 A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and 

is currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder 
from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

 
 A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by 

the Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently 
stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to the carrying on of a licensable 
activity. 

 
 A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a 

national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family 
member of such a national or who has derivative rights or residence. 

  
 A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the 

Home Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may 

Page 38



stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the 
holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity when 
produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent 
National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a 
previous employer. 

 
 A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office 

under regulation 18(3) or 20(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) 
Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state 
or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative 
rights of residence.  

 

 Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their 
permission to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office 
acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or reasonable evidence that the 
person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration decision, 
such as an appeal or administrative review reference number. 

 
 Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic 

Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has 
derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in the UK including:  
o evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,  
o evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family 

member – e.g. a marriage certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth 
certificate, and 

o evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of 
permanent residence in the UK or is one of the following if they have been 
in the UK for more than 3 months: 
(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the 

employer, 
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a 

bank, 
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence 

of sufficient funds; or 
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements. 

 
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially 
independent must also provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and any 
family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private 
medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 

 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a 
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided: 

 
(i)   any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality; 
(ii)  any page containing the holder’s photograph; 
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature; 
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and 
(v)  any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in  
       the UK and is permitted to work. 

 
If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 

 

Page 39



Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve 
us checking your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share 
information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you 
have complied with this guidance.  
 
Home Office online right to work checking service 

 
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may 
demonstrate their right to work by allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with 
the Home Office online right to work checking service.  

 
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, 
applicants should include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon 
accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the 
applicant’s date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority to 
carry out the check.  

 
In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the 
applicant is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition 
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

 
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have 
an immigration status that can be checked online. The Home Office online right to work 
checking service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order 
to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should 
submit copy documents as set out above.  
 

Page 40



Page 41

Stephen Bartlett




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Kathryn Miller

Subject: FW: New premises licence application - The Club Wimborne

From: Premises Licence  
Sent: 04 May 2022 14:28 
Cc: licensingteamc <licensingteamc@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: New premises licence application - The Club Wimborne 
 
Hi Kathryn  
 
As discussed we are happy with the below proposed conditions. 
 
All the best 
 
Ian 
 
 
 
Regards 
 

Innpacked Premises Licensing Team 
  

innpacked training consultants  

Multiple BII NITA Training Award Winners  
 

 

 
 

 
  
   

Excellence as Standard 
 

 
 
Tel: 08000 786 056 

   
Find us on Facebook, Twitter and Youtube 
   

     
  
  
  

Page 45



2

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~         
         

This email is sent for and on behalf of Innpacked Ltd.  
  
Innpacked  Ltd is a company registered in England, registered number: 04758209, 
registered office 10 Whittle Road, Ferndown Industrial Estate, Wimborne, Dorset BH21 
7RU. 
 
VAT registration number 819 087 114. 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY: 
This e-mail and any attachments are strictly private and confidential and are intended 
for the named recipient only. If you are not the intended named recipient, you are 
advised not to read or disclose the contents of this e-mail and/or any attachments to 
another person or take copies of them. If you receive this message in error, please 
notify our e-mail administrator and destroy the message. This e-mail and any 
attachments are protected by international copyright law. 
 
E-MAIL VIRUSES: 
Although this e-mail and any attachments are believed to be free from viruses, it is the 
responsibility of the recipient to ensure that they are virus free. E-mails and 
attachments should always be checked with an up to date virus checker before the 
contents are opened, saved or read. No responsibility is accepted by Innpacked Ltd for 
any loss or damage arising in any way from the receipt, opening or use of this or any 
file sent by or appearing/claiming to be sent by Innpacked Ltd. 
 
SECURITY WARNING: 
This email has been created in the knowledge that internet email is not a 100% secure 
means of communication. You are advised to bear in mind the potential lack of security 
when emailing us.  
 
 
 
 

From: Busfield, Louise <Louise.Busfield@dorset.pnn.police.uk>  
Sent: 27 April 2022 17:39 
To: Premises Licence <premiseslicence@innpacked.com> 
Subject: FW: New premises licence application - The Club Wimborne 
 
Ian  
 
Please see below, apologies I forgot to include you in my email to the Licensing Authority.  
 
Kind regards,  
 
 

 

Louise Busfield 
 

Licensing Officer  
 

Tel: 01202 222445      Internal: 752 2445     Mob: 07912 899315 

 

 

Drug & Alcohol Harm Reduction Team  
Bournemouth Divisional Headquarters 
5 Madeira Road 
Bournemouth 
Dorset Police 

Page 46



3

BH1 1QQ 

 
 
 

From: Busfield, Louise  
Sent: 27 April 2022 17:34 
To: licensingteamc <licensingteamc@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Cc: .Licensing <Licensing@Dorset.PNN.Police.uk>;  
Subject: FW: New premises licence application - The Club Wimborne 
 
Good afternoon Licensing  
 
Further to the above application, please see below  conditions that have been mediated and agreed with the 
applicant for inclusion on the Premises Licence, to include a Dispersal Policy which is attached to this email.  
 
 
Search policy 
 
The premises licence holder shall ensure that the outer clothing, and pockets of all customers entering or re-entering the premises 
are searched by SIA door security personnel either by hand or metal detecting wand. In any event of weapons or controlled 
substances being found where intent to supply is suspected the premises licence holder shall ensure that the designated premises 
supervisor or nominated person shall immediately inform the Police. 
 
All seized drugs or weapons shall be stored in a secure drugs safe until collected by police.   
 
All handbags and bags of all customers entering or re-entering the premises must be searched by hand. 
 
Any customers who refuse to be searched must be refused entry and a corresponding entry must be made in the incidents/refusal 
book 
All incidents/ refusals to be documented prior to the member of staff involved finishing their shift    
 
DPS/Managers are to personally, and by use of the CCTV system, monitor the actions of the security staff at frequent, irregular 
intervals, and at the very least once an hour. 
All searches must be carried out in full view of a CCTV camera. 
 
Security  
 
SIA registered Door Supervisors shall be employed on each occasion the premises 
is operating as a nightclub on the following basis :- 
 

a) 1 SIA registered doorstaff  at the main entrance  to be employed from the time the premises opens (or 19:00hrs, 
whichever is later) until 30 minutes after closing time  or until the last customer has dispersed the immediate area  

b) 1  SIA registered doorstaff to be employed inside the premises  for 1 -120 patrons   
c) 1 additional  SIA registered doorstaff   to be employed per   70 or part 70  patrons thereafter 
d) All door staff shall be provided with radios linked to each other and manager or  DPS  
e) All door staff shall wear high visibility jackets over their outer clothing. 
f) A written log shall be maintained regarding SIA door registered staff and the log shall contain the following details in 

respect of each person working at the premises: - 
i the date of the entry 
ii the time the individual was booked on duty and off duty 
iii the name of the individual 
iv  16 digit  SIA badge number and the expiry date of the badge. 

The log shall be kept and maintained at the premises and made available for inspection upon request from Police, Licensing and 
other authorised officers. 

 
The holder of the licence shall undertake a risk assessment with regard to the deployment of SIA Door Supervisors  at different 
times of the day and on different days of the week to determine whether it is appropriate to deploy additional door staff  on those 
days and/or at any other time(s) and to then implement the outcome of the risk assessment.  
Such risk assessments will also be conducted at the request of the police in respect of any other event scheduled to take place at 
the premises or in Wimborne town centre.  
Copies of all risk assessments shall be retained on the premises for a minimum period of 6 months and shall be made available for 
inspection by police and other authorised officers on request  
 

Page 47



4

Welfare  
 
There will  be a trained first aider on the premises when licensable activities take place 
A  dedicated First Aid/ Chill out area will be available at all times the  premises is open for licensable activity  
 
 
Kind regards,  
 
 
 

 

Louise Busfield 
 

Licensing Officer  
 

 

 

 

Drug & Alcohol Harm Reduction Team  
Bournemouth Divisional Headquarters 
5 Madeira Road 
Bournemouth 
Dorset Police 
BH1 1QQ 

 
 
 

From: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk>  
Sent: 01 April 2022 14:43 
To: .Licensing <Licensing@Dorset.PNN.Police.uk>; 'alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk' 
<alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk> 
Subject: New premises licence application - The Club Wimborne 
 
Please find attached a new premises licence application and supporting documents for The Club in Wimborne. 
 
If you have any comments please may I have them by 29 April 2022. 
 
 

Many thanks 
 
 
Kathryn Miller  

 

Senior Licensing Officer  

Community and Public Protection  

Dorset Council 

01305 838028  

licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 

   

 
 
 

Page 48



5

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they 
are addressed. It may contain unclassified but sensitive or protectively marked material and should be handled 
accordingly. Unless you are the named addressee (or authorised to receive it for the addressee) you may not copy or 
use it, or disclose it to anyone else. If you have received this transmission in error please notify the sender 
immediately. All traffic may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation. Any 
views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, except where the sender specifies and with 
authority, states them to be the views of Dorset Council. Dorset Council does not accept service of documents by fax 
or other electronic means. Virus checking: Whilst all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that this electronic 
communication and its attachments whether encoded, encrypted or otherwise supplied are free from computer 
viruses, Dorset Council accepts no liability in respect of any loss, cost, damage or expense suffered as a result of 
accessing this message or any of its attachments. For information on how Dorset Council processes your 
information, please see www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/data-protection  

************************************************************************ 
This e-mail is intended for the named recipient(s) only and may contain privileged information, which is protected in 
law. If you have received this e-mail in error, please contact the sender to advise them and delete this e-mail. 
Unauthorised use, disclosure, copying or distribution is prohibited. 
************************************************************************ 
E-mail should not be regarded as a secure means of communication, we take all reasonable steps to ensure that e-
mails are protected from malware, but cannot accept liability for any loss or damage, howsoever arising, as a result of 
their transmission to the recipients' computer or network. 
************************************************************************* 
For more information, or to contact us, please visit us at www.devon-cornwall.police.uk or www.dorset.police.uk or e-
mail 101@devonandcornwall.pnn.police.uk or 101@dorset.pnn.police.uk 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: Application for a new Premises Licence - The Club, 23A Eastbrook Row, 
Wimborne, Dorset, BH21 1HN

Attachments: To Submit - The Club Wimborne - Floor Plan Updated Smoking Area.pdf

From: Premises Licence <premiseslicence@innpacked.com>  
Sent: 04 May 2022 14:28 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: Application for a new Premises Licence - The Club, 23A Eastbrook Row, Wimborne, Dorset, BH21 1HN 
 
Hi Kathryn  
 
As discussed we are happy with the below proposed conditions. 
 
All the best 
 
Ian 
 
 
Regards 
 

Innpacked Premises Licensing Team 
  

innpacked training consultants  

Multiple BII NITA Training Award Winners  
 

 

 
 

 
  
   

Excellence as Standard 
 

 
 
Tel: 08000 786 056 

   
Find us on Facebook, Twitter and Youtube 
   

     
  
  

Page 51



2

  
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~         
         

This email is sent for and on behalf of Innpacked Ltd.  
  
Innpacked  Ltd is a company registered in England, registered number: 04758209, 
registered office 10 Whittle Road, Ferndown Industrial Estate, Wimborne, Dorset BH21 
7RU. 
 
VAT registration number 819 087 114. 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY: 
This e-mail and any attachments are strictly private and confidential and are intended 
for the named recipient only. If you are not the intended named recipient, you are 
advised not to read or disclose the contents of this e-mail and/or any attachments to 
another person or take copies of them. If you receive this message in error, please 
notify our e-mail administrator and destroy the message. This e-mail and any 
attachments are protected by international copyright law. 
 
E-MAIL VIRUSES: 
Although this e-mail and any attachments are believed to be free from viruses, it is the 
responsibility of the recipient to ensure that they are virus free. E-mails and 
attachments should always be checked with an up to date virus checker before the 
contents are opened, saved or read. No responsibility is accepted by Innpacked Ltd for 
any loss or damage arising in any way from the receipt, opening or use of this or any 
file sent by or appearing/claiming to be sent by Innpacked Ltd. 
 
SECURITY WARNING: 
This email has been created in the knowledge that internet email is not a 100% secure 
means of communication. You are advised to bear in mind the potential lack of security 
when emailing us.  
 
 
 
 

From: Louise Joyner  
Sent: 28 April 2022 12:13 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Cc: Premises Licence <premiseslicence@innpacked.com> 
Subject: Application for a new Premises Licence - The Club, 23A Eastbrook Row, Wimborne, Dorset, BH21 1HN 
 
Hi Kathryn 
 
Thank you for advising us of the above application. As a designated responsible authority Environmental Health have 
considered the application in respect of potential noise nuisance from the premises. 
 
Should the premises licence be granted, appropriate conditions will be required to mitigate noise disturbance to the 
local community. The applicant has considered this and offered conditions within the application. 
 
I have liaised with the applicant and we have agreed an amendment to the noise limiting device condition proposed 
and additional conditions to manage potential noise from the proposed smoking area at the front of the premises. 
The applicant has amended the attached plan to show where they propose to locate a smoking area. 
 
Environmental Health have no objection to the application subject to the prevention of public nuisance conditions 
offered in the application with amendments as follows:   
 

Page 52



3

A noise limiter shall be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level determined by and to the satisfaction 
of an authorised officer of the Environmental Health Service, so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local 
residents or businesses. The operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the 
satisfaction of officers from the Environmental Health Service and access shall only be by persons authorised by the 
Premises Licence holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with the Environmental Health 
Service. No alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of 
an authorised Officer of the Environmental Health Service. No additional sound generating equipment shall be used 
on the premises without being routed through the sound limiter device. 
 
The cordoned off designated smoking area outside the front of the premises shall be supervised and will be limited to 
no more than 15 patrons at any given time.  
 
The smoking area shall close 45minutes before the termination of licensable activities. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Louise Joyner  

 

Environmental Health Officer (Pollution) 

Environmental Health  

Dorset Council 

dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 

   

 
This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they 
are addressed. It may contain unclassified but sensitive or protectively marked material and should be handled 
accordingly. Unless you are the named addressee (or authorised to receive it for the addressee) you may not copy or 
use it, or disclose it to anyone else. If you have received this transmission in error please notify the sender 
immediately. All traffic may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation. Any 
views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, except where the sender specifies and with 
authority, states them to be the views of Dorset Council. Dorset Council does not accept service of documents by fax 
or other electronic means. Virus checking: Whilst all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that this electronic 
communication and its attachments whether encoded, encrypted or otherwise supplied are free from computer 
viruses, Dorset Council accepts no liability in respect of any loss, cost, damage or expense suffered as a result of 
accessing this message or any of its attachments. For information on how Dorset Council processes your 
information, please see www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/data-protection  

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55

Stephen Bartlett_1




This page is intentionally left blank



1

LicensingTeamB

Subject: RE: The Club in Wimborne

Sent: 07 April 2022 12:59 
To: LicensingTeamB <LicensingTeamB@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Club in Wimborne 
 
Hello 
 
I would like to object to this application as it does not deal with the known problems from when it previously 
operated as a nightclub.  There was significant noise and nuisance to neighbours upon closing and unsociable 
behaviour in the nearby streets/areas such as sexual behaviour and urination.  There appears to be no mention of 
this or how they will control this/clean up mess the following day. 
 
Regards 

Page 57



1

LicensingTeamB

Subject: RE: Wimborne club objection

Sent: 07 April 2022 17:11 
To: LicensingTeamB <LicensingTeamB@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk>; office@wimborne.gov.uk 
Subject: Wimborne club objection 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
I would like to state my wholehearted objection to the proposal to reopen the club in Wimborne, as well as state my 
concern for the opening hours proposed. 
 
The local residents of the area already have a constant and reoccurring battle on their hands with the local pub and 
battle with regular, daily noise and disruption on the doorstep of their homes. I am a local resident and the noise, 
violence, litter and vomit, public damage and unpredictable and uncontrollable disruption and impact on sleep and 
home life is already a challenge. 
 
With its proximity to residents of all ages and abilities, this location surely CANNOT seriously be considered to be 
approved to be a nightclub again.  
Similarly considering the rise in dangerous weapons and fatal attacks in larger towns locally, to allow a nightclub 
that was already notorious for being rowdy to reopen opposite a pub which also sees disruption and antisocial 
behaviour on a regular basis would be utterly flawed, an accident waiting to happen and cause constant stress to 
the residents of Wimborne Minster. The noise honestly is some form of torture as it makes you feel unhappy in your 
own home, especially in the warmer months when it is constant. 
 
It would be foolish beyond belief to think that a nightclub that knows exactly who it wants to attract would be able 
to control the upset and unrest that it causes on the roads outside and the intimidation and noise adding to the 
townspeople’s lives. Especially considering the hours it’s proposing to stay open. Until 3am?! The residents of the 
town have already had to battle constantly to keep the closing hours of the local pub at a consistent and relatively 
considerate time.  
 
Please, please, please consider a sleeping baby and struggling parents, people who work from home, elderly people 
whose home is their sanctuary, hard workers who need sleep for shifts and early mornings. The constant disruption 
that the local pub already causes will be well-documented, as the disruption causes neighbours to need to 
constantly keep windows closed due to noise and smells, adjust sleeping schedules, move to different rooms in their 
homes or even stay with a family member if they know they’ll need a restful night sleep and it won’t be possible in 
their own home. 
How on earth will adding a club to the mix help with any of that? 
 
I am obviously very passionate that no decisions are made without the thoughtful consideration of all local 
neighbours, businesses and common sense. 
 
Please keep us informed directly. 
 
With kind regards, 
 
 
 

Page 58



Page 59



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: The Club Application Objection
Attachments: The Club Licence Objection_Redacted.pdf

 
Sent: 25 April 2022 08:40 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Club Application Objection 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
  
Please find attached my letter objecting to the licence application for “The Club, Wimborne”. 
  
Would you please acknowledge receipt of this email and contents. 
  
Yours, 
  
Robert. 

Page 60



Representation from Wimborne Minster Town Council 

Application for a Premises Licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 

The Club, Wimborne 

23A Eastbrook Row 

Crown Mead 

BH21 1HN 

The Town Council strongly OBJECTS to the Premises Licence application on the 
following grounds: 
 

1. the prevention of crime and disorder 
 
The Club is situated within a residential area within the Town. 
 
Where the sale of alcohol is involved, the possibility for inappropriate and disorderly 
behaviour is significantly increased. 
 
This site was previously operated as a late night club and had a history documented 
with anti-social disturbances and crimes. These issues have been gladly missed 
during its period of closure, not only at the site itself but also throughout the whole 
Town as loud partygoers made their way home, the disturbance they caused spread 
to the Town Square, the Taxi Rank at Prezzos and beyond. 
 
The application proposes the sale of alcohol, from 10.00am until 3.00am, seven days 
a week. This will inevitably result in an increase once more in the number of 
incidents of anti-social behaviour such as swearing and shouting on the street 
especially late at night, fighting and aggression, loitering, and urination in the street. 
 
The increase of littering and vandalism caused by inebriated persons leaving the 
venue will also have a detrimental impact on the local environment. The cost of 
repairing damage is left to the residents, other businesses and the local authorities 
rather than the original business owner or the perpetrator.  The environment in the 
town is vibrant and respectful, the Police cover for the area has been tailored to meet 
this requirement and will be insufficient for the inevitable spill out in the early hours.  
 
It is very likely that the local area will suffer because of the operation of this type of 
premises. 
 

2. the prevention of a public nuisance  
 
A business whose principal hours of operation are late at night and into the early 
hours of the morning is not compatible with this location. 
 
Parking in the Town is at a premium – the majority of residents park in the town 
centre streets and car parks and by increasing the number of people in the area late 
at the night, there will be concern about cars being damaged; both accidental and 
deliberate. 

Page 61



It would also mean that there would be an increase in the traffic flow caused by taxis 
and other vehicles being used to collect people from the venue. This will add to the 
noise and disruption in the night. 
 
The playing of either recorded or live music to as late as 3.00am will cause noise 
disturbance and have an intrusive effect on the residents living nearby. There is no 
clear need for this facility or service in the Town, let alone for 7 days of the week. 
 
As stated previously, it is a residential area with working people and families. The 
proposed late night operation of this venue for 7 days of the week is excessive, 
unnecessary and unacceptable more than likely causing disruption, nuisance and 
disturbance to residents and other local businesses in the Town. 
 

3. public safety 
 
There is concern about the health and safety of the venue. The risk of fire and the 
lack of viable escape routes for tired inebriated people from an upstairs venue has 
not been addressed in the application. 
 

4. protection of children from harm 
 
For families with children living locally in the Town, their wellbeing and home life will 
be inevitably impacted by any subsequent anti-social disturbances and crimes in the 
late night or early hours of the morning. 
 
 
The Town Council requests that this application is REFUSED. 
 
In the event that Dorset Council’s Licensing Committee is minded to grant this 
application, conditions must be placed on the application to significantly restrict the 
number of hours and days of operation and the playing of live and recorded music. 
 
Further to this, the Town Council wishes to express its disappointment in Dorset 
Council’s revised process and policy for consultation on Licensing applications. The 
placement of a A4 poster on the door or window of a venue is inadequate and often 
overlooked and missed. When considering any licensing application, it is often the 
local resident and businesses who ‘best know the area’ and it is vital that they are 
formally consulted. The Town Council would request formal notification from Dorset 
Council in future of any applications within its parish boundary. 

Page 62



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: Objection to The Club, Wimborne application for a Premises Licence. Licensing 
Act 2003

Sent: 25 April 2022 11:49 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objection to The Club, Wimborne application for a Premises Licence. Licensing Act 2003 
 
I refer to the above application dated 1st April 2022 and submit this email as a formal representation. 
 
I am aware that representations must be evidence based and am equally aware that such evidence may include 
hearsay.  
 
I therefore request that you take the following points into account as a resident who has previously been regularly 
disturbed by persons walking home after 3am when the Club was previously open. 
 
 Apart from shouting and singing etc, I have had my car damaged, as well as the bus stop opposite our house being 
regularly vandalised after 3am. This anti social behaviour has noticeably ceased since the premises closed. 
 
Council Policy 2.11 - The policy recognises that each area of the council has its own challenges with regard to 
licensing. Wimborne presently is a town without what most people would deem as a nightclub. The licensed 
premises in Wimborne are pubs which do not routinely host regulated entertainment beyond midnight. Indeed, 
most premises do not serve alcohol after 0030hours.  
 
The town, as a whole, is quiet by 1am. Currently, I therefore do not experience unreasonable levels of public 
nuisance beyond 2am, and consider this acceptable as someone, who myself, likes to use the pubs in town.  
 
My following comments are therefore based on   residents in Wimborne not regularly being disturbed after 2am by 
persons making their way home after using licensed premises, and wish the Council to maintain this as a character 
of the Town. 
 
The applicant has not demonstrated this knowledge of the area as required by this policy and has not addressed 
how they will prevent an adverse affect to the towns' residents in this respect. 
 
Policy 7.25 - Without prejudice to other roads, any resident on a road adjoining East Street, Wimborne should be 
accepted as relevant to this policy paragraph. Leigh Road adjoins East Street and is a direct route home from the 
premises for many who live in the Colehill area, and is therefore affected by the cumulative impact of increased 
public nuisance and crime and disorder from persons leaving this premises after 0330am 
 
It is the sale of alcohol and proposed opening to a far later hour than other premises in Wimborne which have 
caused problems in the past, as described above, and will do in the future if this application is approved. 
 
I would ask that Members exercise their discretion and conclude that any reasonable person would accept that 
when The Club opens at least an hour later than other premises in Wimborne, and increased anti social behaviour is 
experienced an hour after that premises closes, then that is enough evidence that the problem has been caused by 
patrons of The Club leaving at that later hour being the only premises open. 
 
Please therefore accept that the cumulative impact of approving this application will be increased public nuisance 
and crime and disorder in Leigh Road after 0330am, being an unreasonable hour as residents attempt to sleep. 
 

Page 63



2

Policies 6.11 - I submit that, bearing in mind the above comments, that the applicant has not met the 
requirements of the 3 bullet points in this policy  and the Council is obliged to not depart from the policy 
without explaining the exceptional reasons to do so. 
 
Policy 6.12 - If this application is approved as submitted, the whole nature of Wimborne will revert to 
previous years of anti social behaviour and public nuisance through to 4am and later, as other premises 
are forced to also stay open later to compete with The Club.  
 
This application is clearly out of character for Wimborne, and the applicant has not addressed this point at 
all, and therefore has not met Council Policy. 
 
 
 
For all the above reasons, I ask that the Licensing Sub Committe meets the terms of its own policies and 
make at least the following restrictions - 
 
Sale of alcohol terminal time 0100 
Closing time  0130 
 
And that other licensable activities hours be adjusted accordingly. 
 

Page 64



1

licensingteamc

Subject: RE: The Club Wimborne, 23 A Eastbrook Row, Crown Mead, Wimborne

 
Sent: 25 April 2022 13:12 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk>; licensingteamc <licensingteamc@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: Fwd: The Club Wimborne, 23 A Eastbrook Row, Crown Mead, Wimborne 
 
 

FAO The Licensing Officer 

 Further to the application for a new license for live and recorded music with sale of alcohol at the 
above premises I wish to record my objection. 

 The club is situation within the central town area which is mixture of businesses and residential 
areas. 

 This club was previously operational until 2018 and was a nuisance for a number of 
reasons  including excessive noise, uncontrolled ‘customers’ entering and leaving the club, vomit, 
urine and mess being left in the area and general disorder having witnessed people leaving the club 
and climbing on the roof of the business opposite. 

 Our property is located directly opposite the entrance to the Wimborne Club and we were 
constantly affected by the noise, anti-social behaviour and general disturbance as per our regular 
contact with the Environmental Health Department of DCC would support.  The noise  from the 
people arriving using the facility which could be heard from all over the town as they herded to and 
from the club from the other public houses and entertainment venues in the town.  It is very loud, 
somewhat threatening and unruly with fights frequently  breaking out.  The police were regularly 
called to control the problem. 

 The loud music from the club, bearing in mind the windows have to be closed and a noise limiter 
being used, would cause heavy vibrations to our property until closing, which is now going to be 
11pm to 3am, potentially 7 days a week – or at least Friday and Saturday nights. 

 I would assume that the owners of the club would object to their neighbours and or a disco van 
parked outside their own home playing loud music under these circumstances. 

 Once the ‘customers’ have left there is a trail of mess leading to the roads/pavements used to exit 
the area – no-one cleans it up – so when the shops open the following day they have to clean the 
vomit, urine and other mess off the street.  Another cost/job for these businesses, not the people 
responsible for the mess i.e. The Wimborne Club.  They shut their doors and leave it. 

 I note that there is a requirement for one ‘security person’ for every 100-120 customers and I am 
wondering how many people the property is licensed for giving that there is one single doorway 
leaving a crowd of ‘customers’ battling to get in and out. 

 I am concerned that once this venue is established and known in the area that all these problems 
are going to increase and the ambiance of Wimborne Town Centre is going to deteriorate adversely 
affecting other businesses. 

 Who is going to benefit from this?  Not the residents with excessive and threatening noise until 
3am, not the local businesses who will have to clean outside their premises so their customers are 

Page 65



2

not discouraged from visiting, probably an extra job for the police and ambulance services, the 
councils who will have extra work to maintain the area, Waitrose whose lights in the green area 
have not been damaged in the past few years since the Wimborne Club has been closed to mention 
a few.   The only beneficiary from this is the pockets of the person making the application. 

 I believe it is wholly unreasonable that the Wimborne Club is to be given a license under these 
terms and conditions – do the local residents, businesses and services  have to suffer this excessive 
intrusion  

with little benefit to the community as a whole. 

 Kind regards 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Page 66



1

licensingteamc

Subject: FW: The Club, Wimborne 23a Eastbrook Row, Crown Mead, Wimborne BH21 1HN 
application for licences until 3am from Monday to Sunday for alcohol consumption, 
live and recorded music,, and late night refreshment.

 
Sent: 25 April 2022 20:55 
To: licensingteamc <licensingteamc@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Club, Wimborne 23a Eastbrook Row, Crown Mead, Wimborne BH21 1HN application for licences until 
3am from Monday to Sunday for alcohol consumption, live and recorded music,, and late night refreshment. 
 
I object to licences being granted for any of the activities mentioned until 3am every day of the week on the grounds 
that the music is likely to be very loud and annoying to me in my home.  
From past experience of the previous club at this address, there is also likely to be noise and antisocial behaviour as 
people from nearby public houses migrate to the Club for a few hours extra drinking, and as Club customers pour 
out into our quiet streets up to 3am .  
This immediate area is occupied by residents as well as daytime shops, and the potential for disturbance is likely to 
be annoying to many local people. My neighbours and I already tolerate a certain level of noise up to 11pm daily 
from the adjacent Rising Sun public house but we then welcome the chance to get some sleep. Allowing the Club to 
continue business for another 4 hours would be most unreasonable.  
Yours sincerely 

Page 67



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: Objection to application for Premises Licence The Club, Wimborne

 
Sent: 26 April 2022 15:09 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objection to application for Premises Licence The Club, Wimborne 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 

Licensing Application, The Club, Wimborne. 

I am writing as Chairman of Wimborne Residents Action Group to register our concern that the Club, 
Wimborne, previously known as the Vibe, is applying for a licence to re-open.  

Residents with whom I have spoken regard the prospect with great concern. They describe the period since 
the Vibe closed as one of relative calm. Individuals speak of their experience, when the Night Club was still 
open, of late-night damage to property, verbal abuse, and noisy disturbance to sleep at weekends between 
1.30am and 4.00am. The great majority of licensed establishments in Wimborne are closed by midnight at 
the latest. Town-centre residents live cheek by jowl with licensed premises and are materially affected by 
licensing decisions. 

Local traders complain of having had windows broken in the early weekend mornings, having to clean up 
vomit in front of their trading premises, all linked by experience to the post-midnight opening of a Club with 
a business model that depends on continuing the sale of alcohol to young people until long after public 
houses have closed. It is generally agreed that these problems, while not having completely disappeared, 
are much less evident than when the Vibe was still in business. 

I have been informed by the Secretary of the Charity “Wimborne in Bloom” that there was a marked reduction 
in the extent of weekend damage to flower installations in the region of the Vibe following its permanent 
closure. 

It is relatively easy for an applicant to “tick the boxes” in a licence application. The control of consequent anti-
social behaviours, which include alcohol-driven criminal actions and public nuisance, falls outside the remit 
of the licensed premises which caused the problem. Police resources are stretched at this time, and it is well-
established that CCTV and similar technologies do little or nothing to deter problems caused by young people 
who are under the influence of alcohol.  

It is our hope that the Licensing Sub-Committee will agree with us that issuing a licence to a late-night club 
of this nature in the setting of a town such as Wimborne would run against the spirit of licensing objectives 
aimed at preventing crime and disorder and public nuisance. 

Yours faithfully 

John Gatrell 

Chairman, Wimborne Residents Action Group (WRAG) 

Kings House 
17, West Borough 
Wimborne Minster 
BH21 1LT 
Tel: 07801 841731 
  

  

  
Page 68



2

  

  

Page 69



1

licensingteamc

Subject: FW: The Club bh211hn

 
Sent: 26 April 2022 21:06 
To: licensingteamc <licensingteamc@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Club bh211hn 
 
To whom it may concern,  
As the designated premises supervisor /licensee of the Rising Sun, 38,East Street, Wimborne, I wish to register my 
concern regarding licensing The Club situated opposite my pub.  
I don't believe there is a need for such a late license in wimborne. There has always been late night anti social 
behaviour and regular instances of violence associated with this club.  
I have not made use of my late license for quite some time as there is simply no need for it.  
The premises has no designated smoking area resulting in customers spilling out of the entrance.  
As an East Street resident, I must also stress how much disturbance we already endure due to the location of the 
local takeaways.  
I am a local businessman and would actively support any initiative that brings benefits to the town, particularly in 
the struggling hospitality sector. This application, however, I must object to most strenuously.  
 
Kind regards  
Steve Matthews  
Rising Sun  
Wimborne  
 

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android 

Page 70



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: Vibe lounge

 

 
Sent: 27 April 2022 08:28 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Vibe lounge 
 
 

Hello my name is James Harris-Hawkins I own a salon in millstream close called HeadOffice , I am concerned about 
licence renewal of what was called the vibe lounge , in past when it was open I was greeted with sick and other 
things I had to clear up in the morning , I am against the renewal of license on grounds of antisocial behaviour . 
 
Kind Regards James  

My phone number is 01202885537  

Page 71



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: The Club, Wimborne 

Sent: 27 April 2022 10:24 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Club, Wimborne  
 
 
   I live at 11 Millstream Close, Wimborne, BH21 1DW. the entrance to which is directly opposite the door of the 
club.  
   I object to licences being granted for any of the activities mentioned until 3am. every day.   
   In the stillness of the night the volume of the music will be intensified and disturbing and upsetting in my home.  
   I remember when the club was last in operation it was a magnet for all the late night revellers from the public 
houses after they closed.  I had occasion to come home late on some nights then and that crowded section of East 
Street was extremely intimidating to pass through with drunken behaviour, noise and comments. 
   Further, in the mornings there was frequently vomit, glass and assorted undesirable items in the entry to 

   Considering that we in the Close already tolerate a level of noise from the adjacent Rising Sun public house until 
11pm daily, a further four hours of local continued activity so nearby would be most unreasonable. 
   For these reasons I must object most strongly. 
 

Page 72



1

Licensing

Subject: RE:  The Wimborne Club, East Street, Wimborne

 
Sent: 27 April 2022 14:31 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: The Wimborne Club, East Street, Wimborne 
 

I am a resident of East Street Wimborne and live at 43A, East Street, Wimborne, BH21 1DX. 

 

It has been drawn to my attention that a licence has been applied for the Subject premises to be open 7 days a week 
between 10:00 and 03:00. I am raising an objection to this as I remember the noise and trouble that there was 
during the time that The Vibe was open. The shouting and screaming then was terrible as was the fact that people 
were vomiting and urinating in doorways and there was usually a fight or two accompanied by the usual shouting. 
The increased traffic noise due to taxis as well as motorists also added to the clamour and made it difficult to get a 
good night's sleep. 

 

It was bad enough pre-Covid when pubs like The Rising Sun, The Butcher's Dog and The Dancing Moose stayed open 
until 01:00. The noise would not abate until around 02:00 or 02:30 due to the screaming and shouting of people 
leaving those premises and waiting for taxis and lifts home. 

 

If there was one good thing that came out of the Covid Pandemic then it was the closing of pubs between 22:00 and 
23:00 and the vastly reduced street noise as a result. Some premises still do not open on Mondays and Tuesdays 
even now and it is bliss as my bedroom and that of others in East Street fronts East Street. 

 

Do not ruin Wimborne, please! 

 

If you have to grant this licence then do so at a respectable hour say 12:00-23:00 during the week and 12:00-24:00 
on Fridays and Saturdays. 

 

Yours respectfully, 

 

Page 73



1

Licensing

Subject: License application The Club Wimborne, 23A Eastbrook Row ,Crown Mead.

Sent: 28 April 2022 12:14 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: License application The Club Wimborne, 23A Eastbrook Row ,Crown Mead. 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
I have significant concerns about this application. 
 
1. Given the application to close  after 2am in the morning there is every chance this will concentrate intoxicated 
individuals  in this area which could lead to disorder at closing time .Given the Police cutbacks how will this  be dealt 
with ? 
 
2.Will there be a designated smoking area  as provision does not seem to have been made for this ? 
 
Given the above I object to this application, 
 

Page 74



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: Support for premises licence application for The Club, 23 Eastbrook Row, 
Crown Mead, Wimborne

 
Sent: 28 April 2022 14:43 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: Support for premises licence application for The Club, 23 Eastbrook Row, Crown Mead, Wimborne 
 
Good afternoon, 
Please accept this email as support for the above mentioned application. I feel that Wimborne has missed out since 
the nightclub closed its doors and this would be a great addition to the town, especially at the moment after the 
past few years of being so restricted on socialising and events. 
This will give local people (from Wimborne, and surrounding areas) somewhere to go, rather than having to pay to 
travel further afield into Poole/Bournemouth. 
I will be looking forward to seeing the club open its doors again and excited to see what it has to offer 
 
Kind Regards 

Page 75



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: The club wimborne 

 
Sent: 28 April 2022 14:45 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: The club wimborne  
 
Good afternoon, 
I just wanted to write to show my support for the re opening of ‘The Club’ in Crown mead Wimborne. As a mother of 
3 sons who used to frequent it before it’s closure, I can’t help but feel that it would fill a big gap that has been 
missing since it’s closure. 
Warmest regards  
 
Sent from my iPhone 

Page 76



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: 

 
Sent: 28 April 2022 21:49 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject:  
 
Hi,  
 
I live in Wimborne (2 Constance Road, BH21 2FS) and would be in favour of the night club reopening.  
 
Kind regards  
 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 

Page 77



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: The Club Wimborne

 
Sent: 29 April 2022 07:04 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Club Wimborne 
 
To whom it may concern. 
 
I am writing to state my support for The Club Wimborne's reopening. I heard that many local residents are in 
opposition. However I feel it would be hugely beneficial to Wimborne residents and businesses. Since the closure of 
The Club, many of my friends and I tend to now go to Ashley cross for an evening out. We all feel that without The 
Club, Wimborne really lacks something. And going by how much quieter Wimborne seems to be on an evening out, I 
am fairly sure my friends and I are not the only ones who feel that way.   
 
My name is Gemma Kaye 
45 Henbest Close 
Wimborne 
Dorset 
BH21 2EX 
 
I hope my email of support for The Club will be taken into account as much as all of those people who oppose it's 
reopening. And I will hope that in the near future I will not have to travel as far for a fun evening out with my 
friends. 
 
Kind regards 

Page 78



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: 

Sent: 29 April 2022 15:52 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject:  
 
I am writing in support of the reopening of 'The Club' in Wimborne. 
As a visitor to this business before it closed prior to lockdown I found it a fun, safe and welcoming place to go. My 
friends and I now have to travel into either Poole or Bournemouth should we wish to have a later evening and this is 
both costly to ourselves and doesn't serve or support Wimborne at all. I think with the impact Covid has had on the 
entertainment industry I think a well ran nightclub should be given the chance to reopen and serve the local 
community  

Page 79



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: The Club, Wimborne 

 
Sent: 29 April 2022 21:20 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Club, Wimborne  
 
Good evening, 
 
Please include this email as support for the re-opening of The Club in Wimborne Minster. I can confirm I am a 
resident of Wimborne, address below.  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Olivia Halford 
 
07842513931 
1 Gordon Road, 
Wimborne, 
Dorset, 
BH21 2AP 

Page 80



1

Licensing

Subject: FW: Re-opening of the vibe lounge

 
Sent: 29 April 2022 12:11 
To: Licensing <licensing@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re-opening of the vibe lounge 
 
Hi, my name is Arthur, I am 18 and my postcode is bh21 1qs. 
I think it would be an excellent addition to Wimborne to have the club re-open, it brings another aspect of nightlife 
to Wimborne which it doesn’t have at the moment and would make wimborne even more of a hub for young people 
and nightlife in general. 
Thank you. 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Election of Chairman and Statement for the Procedure of the Meeting
	5 New Premises Licence Application for The Club Wimborne, Wimborne
	Appendix 1 Applicaiton The Club Wimbore redacted_Redacted
	Appendix 1 Orginial The Club Wimborne - Floor Plan
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3 Police
	Appendix 4 EH
	Appendix 4 Floor Plan Updated Smoking Area
	Appendix 5_Redacted
	Rep 1
	Rep 2
	Rep 3 letter
	Rep 3
	Rep 4
	Rep 5
	Rep 6
	Rep 7
	Rep 8
	Rep 9
	Rep 10
	Rep 11
	Rep 12
	Rep 13

	Appendix 6
	Support 1
	Support 2
	Support 3
	Support 4
	Support 5
	Support 6
	Support 7



